

For the reasons set out in the preamble, 50 CFR part 622 is proposed to be amended as follows:

PART 622--FISHERIES OF THE CARIBBEAN, GULF OF MEXICO, AND SOUTH ATLANTIC

1. The authority citation for part 622 continues to read as follows:

Authority: 16 U.S.C. 1801 *et seq.*

2. In § 622.39, add paragraph (a)(1)(iii)(C) and remove paragraph (a)(1)(iii)(D) to read as follows:

Commented [SS1]: (C) is original red grouper paragraph which the ER suspended so we have to add it back in and (D) is the ER paragraph which we remove for the framework.

§ 622.39 Quotas.

* * * * *

(a) * * *

(1) * * *

(iii) * * *

(C) *Red grouper*—3.00 million lb (1.36 million kg)

Commented [SS2]: Action 1, Pref Alt 3. Same commercial quota as in the ER.

* * * * *

3. In § 622.41, add paragraph (e) and remove paragraph (r) to read as follows:

Commented [SS3]: (e) is original red grouper paragraph which the ER suspended so we have to add it back in and (r) is the ER paragraph which we remove for the framework.

§ 622.41 Annual catch limits (ACLs), annual catch targets (ACTs), and accountability measures (AMs).

* * * * *

(e) *Red grouper*—(1) *Commercial sector*. The IFQ program for

groupers and tilefishes in the Gulf of Mexico serves as the accountability measure for commercial red grouper. The commercial ACT for red grouper is equal to the applicable quota specified in § 622.39(a)(1)(iii)(C). The applicable commercial ACL for red grouper, in gutted weight, is 3.16 million lb (1.43 million kg).

Commented [SS4]: Action 1, Pref Alt 3. Same commercial ACL as in the ER.

(2) *Recreational sector.* (i) Without regard to overfished status, if red grouper recreational landings, as estimated by the SRD, reach or are projected to reach the applicable ACL specified in paragraph (e)(2)(iv) of this section, the AA will file a notification with the Office of the Federal Register, to close the recreational sector for the remainder of the fishing year. On and after the effective date of such a notification, the bag and possession limit of red grouper in or from the Gulf EEZ is zero. This bag and possession limit applies in the Gulf on board a vessel for which a valid Federal charter vessel/headboat permit for Gulf reef fish has been issued, without regard to where such species were harvested, *i.e.* in state or Federal waters.

(ii) Without regard to overfished status, and in addition to the measures specified in paragraph (e)(2)(i) of this section, if red grouper recreational landings, as estimated by

the SRD, exceed the applicable ACL specified in paragraph (e)(2)(iv) of this section, the AA will file a notification with the Office of the Federal Register to maintain the red grouper ACT, specified in paragraph (e)(2)(iv) of this section, for that following fishing year at the level of the prior year's ACT, unless the best scientific information available determines that maintaining the prior year's ACT is unnecessary. In addition, the notification will reduce the length of the recreational red grouper fishing season the following fishing year by the amount necessary to ensure red grouper recreational landings do not exceed the recreational ACT in the following fishing year.

(iii) If red grouper are overfished, based on the most recent Status of U.S. Fisheries Report to Congress, and red grouper recreational landings, as estimated by the SRD, exceed the applicable ACL specified in paragraph (e)(2)(iv) of this section, the following measures will apply. In addition to the measures specified in paragraphs (e)(2)(i) and (ii) of this section, the AA will file a notification with the Office of the Federal Register, at or near the beginning of the following fishing year to reduce the ACL for that following year by the amount of the ACL overage in the prior fishing year, and reduce the ACT, as determined in paragraph (e)(2)(ii) of this section,

by the amount of the ACL overage in the prior fishing year,
unless the best scientific information available determines that
a greater, lesser, or no overage adjustment is necessary.

(iv) The recreational ACL for red grouper, in gutted
weight, is 1.00 million lb (0.45 million kg). The recreational
ACT for red grouper, in gutted weight, is 0.92 million lb (0.42
million kg)

* * * * *

Commented [SS5]: Action 1, Pref Alt 3. Same recreational
ACL and ACT as in the ER.